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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals
Private Limited (the “Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows
and the Staterment of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In aur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the inforrmation required by the Companies Act, 2013 {the “Act™)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, (*Ind AS") and cther accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its
loss, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
("SAs") specified under section 143(10) of the Act, Qur responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financiat statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

s The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's report, but does not include the financial
statements, and our auditor’s report thereon.

» Ouropinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

* In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

+ If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance inciuding other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intend to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but te
do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors is alse responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected teo influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism througheut the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentionat omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in ptace and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.
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« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence cbtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit wark and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained ali the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} 1In our opinion, proper bocks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account,

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164{2) of the Act.
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f)

g)

h)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements,

With respect to the other matters te be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197{16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section
197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accardance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disciosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements - Refer Note 32 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any fong-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

lii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclesed in the note 42 (e) to the financial statements, no funds
(which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person{s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the note 42 (f} to the financial statements, no funds
(which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shail, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in cther
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) ar provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(1Y and (ii} of Rule 11(e), as previded under {a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.
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V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has
not proposed final dividend for the year.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
an accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the year ended
31 March 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and
the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across
any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

Additionally audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “"Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.008072S)

/r
Anigit Daga
Partner

{Membership No. 512486)
(UDIN: 25512486BMOZPN2355)

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 13 May 2025
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1{f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Sri Sainatha
Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited (the “Company”) as at 31 March 2025 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial staterments of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based on the internal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and coempleteness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is ta express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference te financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of intermal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Contrels with reference to financial statements
A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation

of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
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those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with autharisations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of colfusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Aiso, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the criteria for internal financial control with
reference to financial statements established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.008072S)

/.l
Ankit Daga
Partner
(Membership No. 512486}
(UDIN: 25512486BMOZPN2355)

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 13 May 2025
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under *‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the nermal course of audit and to the best of our knowiedge
and belief, we state that:

(i) (a)

(b)

(d)

{e)

(i) (a)

{b)

(A)  The Company has maintained proper records showing fult particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, capital
work-in-progress and relevant details of right of use assets.

{B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment (except
leasehold improvements), capital work-in-progress, and right-of-use assets so to
cover all the items in a phased manner over a period of 2 years, which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. Pursuant te the program, certain property, plant and equipment, capital
work-in-progress, and right-of-use assets were due for verification during the year
and were physically verified by the management during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the company is the lessee and lease agreements are duly executed
in favour of the Company) and hence reporting under clause (i)(c) of the Order is
not applicable.

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including
Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at 31 March 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 {as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at
reascnable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class
of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when
compared with books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at any
point of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. Hence, reporting on the quarterly returns or statements
filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions is not applicable.

(iii) The Company has not granted unsecured loan to companies during the year, however there
are outstanding balances for the unsecured loan given in earlier years, in respect of which:

a) The Company has not provided unsecured loans during the year, however there are

outstanding batances for the unsecured loan given in earlier years and details of
which are as below;
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b}

c)

d)

e)

f}

Par'ﬁcuTars ) [ Loans (INR Lakhs) |
A. Aggregate amount granted / provided 1 ’
during the year
- Fellow Subsidiary -

. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in
respect of above cases: ,
Fellow Subsidiary T 765.37

4+
L

as)

The Company has not provided any security or advances in the nature of loan or
stood guarantee during the year.

The terms and conditions of the grant of the all the above-mentioned loans, during
the year are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

The Company has not made any investment during the year.

The Company has granted loan which is payable on demand. During the year the
Company has demanded partial amount of such loan. Having regard to the fact that
the repayment of principal or payment of interest has been demanded and received
by the Company, in our cpinion the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of
interest are regular. (Refer reporting under clause(iii)(f) below).

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, in respect of loan granted by the Company, there is no
overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

None of the toans granted by the Company have fallen due during the year.

The Company has granted loan which are repayable on demand details of which are
given below:

Name of the entity " All Parties Promoters Related Parties
(Amountin | (Amount (Amount in
Lakhs) in Lakhs) Lakhs)

" Aggregate of loans

- Repayable on demand (A) 765.37 | - 765.37 |
- Agreement does not specify = - _
any terms or period of
repayment (B)

| Total of (A+B) | 765.37 -1 765.37
Percentage of loans to the 100% - 100%
total loans

{iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities
provided, as applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.
Hence reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

{ix)

(x)

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of healthcare services rendered. We have
broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central
Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Campanies Act,
2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made
and maintained by the Company. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of
the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

In respect of statutory dues:

(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custorn, cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to the Company have been regularly deposited by it with
the appropriate authorities in all cases during the year. As explained to us by the
management, there were no dues payable in respect of Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty
of Excise and Value Added Tax during the year.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Provident Fund, Employees” State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and
other material statutery dues in arrears as at 31 March 2025, for a peried of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

{b) There are no statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a} above which have not been
deposited on account of disputes as on 31 March 2025.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered
or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)
during the year.

(a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

{c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no
unutilised term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause
{ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the funds
raised on short-term basis have, on prima facie, not been used for long-term
purposes by the Company.

(e} The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the
year and hence, reporting under clause (ix}{e) and (f} of the Order is not
applicable.

(a) The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt instruments) during

the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private

placement of shares or convertible debentures {fully or partly or optionally) and
hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not appticable to the Company.
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(x7)

{xii)

(xiii)

{xiv)

{(xv)

{xvi)

{xvii)

{xviii}

{xix)

(a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on
the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during
the year and upto the date of this report.

() As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year and upto the date of this report.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 188 of the Companies Act, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.
The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary and hence the provisions of section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

{a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the
year and covering the period upto 31 March 2025 and the final of the internal audit
reports issued after the balance sheet date covering the period 1 April 2024 to 31
March 2025 for the period under audit.

In our apinton, during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with any of its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of
section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Group does not have any Core Investment Company {CIC) as part of the group and
accordingly reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred any cash loss in the financial year covered by our audit but
had incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 360.80 lakhs in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its labilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
batance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viablity
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.
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{(xx) The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover
of rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore or more during the
immediately preceding financial year and hence, provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not
applicabie to the Company during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x) of the
Crder is not applicable for the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.0080725)

)

Ankit Daga

artner

(Membership No. 512486)
(UDIN: 25512486BMOZPN2355})

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 13 May 2025
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Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
CIN: U851 10TG2007PTCO54E18

Balance Shect as at 31 March 2025

All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Particulars Note As at As at
31 March 2028 31 March 2024

Assets
Non-current assets

Property, plant end 2quipment 4 1.573.92 171685
Right-of-use assets 38 34.349.61 374275
Capital work-in-progress 5 202121 2460
Other intangible assels 6 5,49 2118
Finuncial assets
Loans 131 765.37 946.73
Other financial assets 2 32478 B8.61
Income X assets (net) 31 202,11 23652
Other non-current asscts 13 18.62 28.82
Total non=-current assets 39,261.11 6,782.43
Current assets
Tnventorics 7 227.006 240.66
Financial asscts
Trade rcecivables 8 1.85538 1.033.59
Cash and cash cquivalents 9 3681 54.4%
Bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents above 10 - 56.63
Other financial assets 12 98,11 46.92
Other cuitent assets 13 9748 120.37
Total current assets 2.314.84 1,552.65
Total assets 41,575.95 8,335.08
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equily share capital 14 700158 T01.59
Chher equity 15 1.444,i0 2.201.84
Total Equity 2,145.69 2,903.43
Liabilities
Nuon-current liahilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities is 34.617.64 386084
Provisions 16 122.85 75.68
Total non-current liabilities 34,740.49 3.936,52
C'urrent liabilities
Financial iiabilitics
Bomrowings 17 2.769.47 49.30
Lease liabilitics 35 312.25 85.32
Trade payables 18
- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 164.38 39.43
- Total cutstanding ues of creditors other that micro and small enterprises 200.02 88753
Other financial liabilitics 19 484.82 391.23
Other current Labilities 20 53.83 42.32
Total current liabilitics 4,689.77 1,495.13
Total equity and liabilities 41,575.95 8,335.08
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financiai statements
Ags per our veport of even date attached
for Deloitte Hasking & Sells Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chaitered Accountants Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Ligited
Fivm registration number: 0080725
- -
/.
AnkifDdga Abdol Salam Ameerali Sunil Kumar M R
Partaer Director Director
Membership No.: 512486 DIN: ORO91K22 DIN: 09045676
Bengalur o2 Kochi Bengalum

CHARTERED |\™

Date: 13 May 2425 Date: 13 May 2025

ACCOUNTANTS Jr—
[




Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited

CIN: USS110TG2007PTCOS4118

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2025

All ameunts in [INR lakhs, unless othenwvise stated

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Income
Revenue from operations 21 7.335.10 3.221 80
Other income 22 139.27 134.00
Total income 7,474.37 5,955.86
Expenses
Purchases of medicines and medical consumables 23 1,447.54 1.063.54
Changes in inventories 24 13.60 (73.87)
Professional fees to consultant docters 25 2.122.14 1,672,54
Laboratory cutseurcing charges 26 30.45 211.31
Employee benefits expense 27 1,727.12 156187
Finance cost 28 160,73 32486
Depreciation and amortisation 29 766.75 80774
Other expenses 30 1,734,923 1,552.06
Total cxpenses 8,203.26 7,118.95
Loss hefore tax (728.90) (1,163.09)
Tax expense k3]

Tax expense for earlier years 14.00 -

Deferred Tax 4,13 0.49
Total tax expense 18.13 0.49
Loss for the year {747.03) (1,163.58)
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
ems that will not he reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability (14.84) (1.73)
Income tax relating to itzms that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 4.13 0.49
Total other comprehensive loss for the vear {10.71) (1.26)
Taotal comprehensive loss for the vear (757.74) {1,164.84)
Loss per share {(equity share of face value of INR 10 eagh) 33
Basic {10.80) (16.58)
Diluted (10.80) {16.58)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
Sfor Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number: 0080728

Partner

Membership No.: 512486
Bengaluru

Date: 13 May 2025

ul Salam Ameerali
Director

DIN: 08091822

Kochi

Date: 13 May 2025

Jfar and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sri Sainatha Multispociality Hopp

Sunil Kumar M R

DIN: 09045676

Date: 13 May 2025




Sri Sainatha Mulispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
CIN; URS1LOTGZO07PTCOS411R

Statement of cash flaws for the yesr ended 31 March 2025
All sinounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Particulars For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Cash flows frem operating activities
Adjustmenis for

Finance costs

Changes in trade reccivables
Changes in inventarics

Chimpes i trade poyables
Changes 1n provisions

Changes in other liabilities

Interest received
Loan repaid

Iayment of lease liabilities
Finance cost paid
Intercorporate loan

Lass for the year before tax (728.9M (1,163.09)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 6615 0774
36073 324%6
Inlerest meome (refer Note 22) (84,73 (1241.03)
Inlerest meeme under the elfective interest method (refer Note 22) = 14.90)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment {net) 299 (.35
Allowances for credit losses on finanelal assets 42.10 149.61
Operating cash flows hefnre movements in warking capital 3501 {5.32)
Moy ements in Working capital -
(863.95) {322.42)
13.60 175.87)
Changes in other financial assels {177.18) (2754
Changes in other current assets 2235 16043}
137.44 49584
3233 2434
Changes in other financial liabilities 1842
16.51 IR0
Cash used in operating activities (441.47) (234.96)
Taxes paid. nel ol refund received 204! 1448
Net cash used in operating activities (A) {421.06) (220.48)
Cash fiows from investing activities
Muovement in other bank balances and restricted deposits 5.73 037
2545 12003
1%1.36 55327
Payment Lo acquire property. plant and equipment and Capital work in progress (1LB15.43) (238,73
Procecds on sale of propenty, plant and equipment 11.56 {40
Net cash gencrated from/ (wsed in) investing activities (B) (1,591.33) 435.74
Cash flows from financing activities
(708.55) 7077
(16,413 (9.2%)
215000 -
Shore term borrowings availed / repaid (net) 20.8%) 49,30
Net cash generated fram fused in) financing activities (C) 1.994.71 (430.75)
Net {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) (17.67) (215.49)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginring of the year S4.48 269.97
Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note %) 1681 Sd.44
Componenis of cask and cash cquivalents
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 20235

M March 2014

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of :

2) Cash on hand ST 1.69
b) Balance with banks 19.30 5279
¢} Cash . Chegues- in transil 1..74 -
Tatal 3681 54.48
Changes in Babilities arfsing fro financing nctivities for the year ended 31 March RS
Particulars Asat Movement during the yezr Non-cash changes As at
1 Aprit 2024 Cash inflows Cash Additions Finance 31 March 2625
vutflows costs
Bomowings (current and non-current) including interest 49.30 2.750.00 146.73) - 3L 93.4% 287718
Lease tabilities 3,946.16 - {708,55) 30.092.07 320.63 1.270.58 34,920 89
Total 3,995.46 2,750.00 (755.29) 30,092.07 360.73 1,364.07 37,807.94
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities for the vear ended 31 March 2024
Particulars As ot Movement during the year Non-cash changes As al
1 April 2023 Cash inflaws Cash Additions Finance M March 2024
outilows costs
Borrowings (current ang non-current) including interest - 49.30 {2.28) - 732 1.96 49.30
Leasc habilitivs 4,09%.39 - (470.77) - 317.54 - 3.946.16
Total 4,099.39 49.30 (48D.05) - 324.86 1.96 3.995.46

Note : The sbove statement of audiled cash flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect methed” as sel out in Ind AS 7. ‘Stalement of Cash Flows',
The accompanying notes form an mtegral port of these finangial staements

As per our report of even date attached.

for Deleitte Haskins & Sells fir and on behalf of the Board of Dircclory
Charigred Accountants Srl Sainatha Multispeclality Hospitalg®P
Firm regisiagtion aumber: 0080728 «

| Salam Amecralk

ted

Sunil Kumar M R

Partner Hrector Director
Membership No.: 512486 DIN; 08091822 DIN: 09045676
Bengalurg Kuehi Rengaluru

Date: 13 May 2025 Date: 13 May 2025




S$ri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited

CIN: USSTI0TG2007PTCO54118

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, untess otherwise stated

A Equity share capital

No. of equity

Particulars Note shares Amount
(in Jakhs)

Balance as at 1 April 2023 70.16 TH.59
Changes in cquity sharc capital during 2023-24 14 - B
Asaf 31 March 2024 70.16 701.59
Changes in equity share capital during 2024-25 14 = -
As at 31 March 2025 .16 701,59

B Other cquity

Particulars

Reserves and surplus (Refer

Items of other

Taotal other cquity

Note 15) comprehensive incomg attributable to equity
{Refer Note 15) holders of the Campany
Securities Retained| Remeasurement of net
premium carnings| defined benefit liability/
(asset), net of tax
Balance as at 1 April 2023 2,734,324 632.44 - 3.366.68
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2024
Loss for the year - (1,163.58) N (1.163.58)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - (1.26) 11.26%
Total comprehensive income - {1,163.58) (1.26) (1,004.84)
Transferred to retained earnings - (1.26) 1.26 B
Balance as at 31 March 2024 2,734.24 (532.40) - 2,201.84
Balance as at 1 April 2024 2,734.24 (532.40) - 2,201.84
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 Mayrch 2025
Loss for the year - (747.03) - (747.03)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - {10.71) (0.7
Transferred fo retained earnings - (10.71) 10.71 -
Balance as at 31 Mar 2025 2,734.24 (1,290.14) - 1.444.10

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statcments

As per our report of even date attached.
for Deloitte Hasking & Sells
Chanered Accountants

Firm registration number; 0080725

AnkitN\Daga
Partner

Membership No.: 512486
Bengaluru )
Date: 13 May 2025

Director

DIN: Q8091822

Kachi

"

Abdul Salam Amcerali

Date; 13 May 2025

Jor and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited

Sunil Kumar M R
Director

DIN: 09045676
Bengaluru

Date: 13 May 2025




Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year cnded 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

1.

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Company overview

Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited (“the Company™ was incorporated on 24 May 2007 under the Companies Act 1936 as a private
limited company. The Company is domiciled in India, with its registered office situated at P-4, Besides Blue Fox Hetel, Mythri Vihar, Ameerpet,
Hydcrabad, Telangana, The Company primarily involved in the operations of healtheare facilities and retail pharmacies in India. The holding company is
Aster DM Healtheare Limited, [ndia.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordanee with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) as per the Companies (Tndian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and the relevant amended rules prescribed under Scetion 133 of the Companics Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’), read with
relevant ruies issued thereunder.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 13 May 2023
The Comparny’s material accounting policies are included in Notg 3.

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements arc presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which 1s also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts are presented in Endian
Rupces in lakhs, and arc rounded off to two decimals, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the histerical cost basis convention on accrual basis except for the following items that have been measured
at fair valuc as required by relevant Ind AS:

(i) Certain financial asscts and liabilities.

(ii) Net defined benefit (asset)’ liability,

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, the Management hias made judgements, cstimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policics
and the reported amounts of asscts, liabilities, income, and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.,

Estimates and underlying asswmptions are reviewed by the Management on an engoing basis. Revisions to accounting cstimates are recognised
prospectively.

Information about judgements, assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment during the year
ended 31 March 2925 is included in the following notes:

~Note 3.1, 3.2. 4 and 5 - Measurement of useful dife and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets;

- Note 3.5 and 16 - Meusurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

-Note 3.11 and 32 - Recognition of deferred tax asset: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used:

- Nole 3.6 and 32 - Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of
TESOUrCes;

-Note 3.8 & 35 « Leases;

- Note 3.4 and 39 - Impainment of financial assets.

2.5 Measurement of fair vitlues

2.6

A number of the Company’s accounting palicies and disclosures requite the measurement of fair valucs, for both financial and non-financial asscts and
liabilitics. The Company has an established control framewaork with respect to the measurcment of fair values.
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hicrarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation technigues as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities:

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly {1e.,
derived from prices); and

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or lizbility that are not based on observable market data {unebservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable murket data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair
value of an assel or a liabilily fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirely in the sanme
level of the fair value hicracchy as the Jowest level input that is significant to the entire measureinent.

The Commpany recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hicrarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.
Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:

- Financial instruments;

- Fair valuc of property, plant and cquipment and intangible assets.

Recent accounting proneuncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs {“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companigs {Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules us issued from time to time, During the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS 117 - Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind As
116 — Leases, relating to sale and lease back transactions. applicable from April 1, 2024. The Company has assessed that there is no significant impact on
its financial staterments.

On May 9, 2025, MCA notifics the amendments to Ind AS 21 - Effects of Changes in Forcign Exchange Rates. These amendmenis aim te provide clearer
guidancc on assessing cumency exchangeability and cstimating exchange rates when currencies are net readily cxchangeable. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or atter April 1, 2025, The Company bs currently assessing the prabable impact of these amendments on its
financial statements.




Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise siated

3 Material accounting policies

3.1 Property, plant and equipment
i. Recognition and measurement
fterns of property. plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitabised borrowing costs, less aceurnnlated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losscs, if any.
Cest of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including impert duties and non-refundable purchasc taxcs, afier deductng
trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item te its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of
dismantling and remaving the item and restoring the site on which it is Jocated.
The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direet labour, any other costs directly attributable
1o bringing the item to working conditien for its intended usc, and cstimated cests of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located.
[f significant parts of an item of property, plant and cquipment have different uscful tves, then they are accounted for as scparate items (major components)
of property, plant and equipment.
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property. plant and cquipment is recognised in the statement of prefit and loss.
Advances paid towards the acquisition of property. plant and cquipment, outstanding at cach balange sheet date are shown under other non-current asscts.
The cost of property, plant and ¢quipment not ready for its intended use at cach balance sheet date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

ii. Subsequent expenditare and derecognition

Subseguent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future cconomic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use
of the asset, The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference hetween the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the assct and is recognised in the staternent of profit and less.

ili. Depreciation

Pepreciation on property, plant and equipment are provided on the straight-line method over the uscful lives of the assets estimated by the Management,
Pepreciation for asscts purchased / sold during a peried is proportionately charged. Leaschold improvements are amortized over the Jease term or useful
lives of assets, whichever is lower. The cstimated useful lives of items of property, plant and cquipment for the current and comparative years arc as

follows:

Class of asscts Useful life {in yearsy
Fumiture and fixtures * 5-10

Plant and equipment 5-15
Computer cquipment 3

Medical cquipment® 10-13
Servers and netwerks 6

Metor vehicles * 3

* For the above-mentioned classes of assets, the Company believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the useful lives of these assets based
on internal assessment end supported by techmeal advice, where necessary, which is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule
1i of the Companics Act, 2013.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.

iv. Capital work-in-progress

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and eguipment cutstanding as of each reporting date are recognized as capital udvance and the cost
of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before such date are disclosed under capital work- in-pragress.

Commencement of Depreciation refated 0 property, plant and equipment classified as Capital work in progress (CWIP) involves determining when the
assets are available for their intended use. The criteria the company uses to determine whether CWIP are available for their intended use invalves
subjective judgments and assumptions about the conditions necessary for the assets to be capable of operating in the intended manner.

3.2 Intangible asscts
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accnmulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Intangible assets are amortised over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, commencing from the daie the assel is
available to the Company for its use and is included in depreciation and amortisation expenses in the statement of profit and loss. The estimated useful lite
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of uny changes in estimate being accounted for vn a prospective

basis.
Class of assets Useful life {in years)
Computer software 3

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible assel is based on a number of factors including the effects of cbselescence, demand. competition and
other ceoncmic factors (such as the stability of the indusiry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to
obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset.

Subsequent expenditurc is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset 20 which it relates. All other
expenditurc 1s recognised in the stateraent of profit and loss as incurred.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future cconomic benetits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the differcnee between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset. are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.




Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

33

34

3.5

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value, The cost of inventories comprises purchase price, and other cost incurred in bringing
the inventorics to their present location and condition. The Company uscs the weighted average method 1o determine the cost of inventory consisting of
medicines and medical consumables.

Net reatisable valug is the estimated selfing price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the cstimated costs necessary
1o make the sale. The comparison of cost and net realisable values is made on an item-by-item basis.

Impairment

i, Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expeeted credit losses (ECL) on financia! assets measured at amortiscd cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit impaired. A financial asset s ‘credit impaiced’
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated futire cash flows of the finuncial asset have occurred.

The Company always measures the lass allowance for trade reccivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The expected credit losses on trade reveivables
are estimated using a provision matrix by reterence to past defzult experience of the debtors and an snalysis of the debtors' current finaacial position,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general econasmic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate, and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

Tn all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is
exposed to credit risk.

Measurement af expected credit fosses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses arc measurcd as the present value of all cash shortfalls {ic., the
difference between the cash flows duc to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive)
Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the halance sheet:

Loss allowanges for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets,

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financizl asset is written off (cither partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This s
gencrally the case when the Company determines that the debter docs not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject o the write off.

il, Tmpairment of non- financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets and other than inventories are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Fach CGU represents
the smablest group of ussets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of vther assets or CGLUs.

The recoverable amount of @ CGU (or an individual assct) is the higher of its value in usc and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate thal reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

Intangible assets and property, plant and cquipment are cvaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that ther
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount i.c., the higher of the fair value less cost to sell
and the valuc-in-usc is determined on an individual asset basis unless the assel docs not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from
other assets. Tn such cases, the recaverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

If such asscls arc considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the statement of profit and loss is measured by the amount by which the
carrying value of the asscts excoeds the cstimated recoverable amount of the assct.

An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of prafit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any accumutated amortization or depreciation) had no impairment fuss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

Employee benefits

Short-term emplayee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits
inchude salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis und are expensed as the
related service is provided. A tiability is recognised for the amount expeeted 1o be paid e.g.. under shori-term cash bonus, if the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as o result of past service provided by the employee and the amount of sbligation can be gstimated
relizbly.

Post-emplaynient henefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a past-cmployment benefit plan under which an cntity pays fixed contributions and will have ne legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Govemiment administered provident fund scheme.
Obligations for contribulions to detined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss in the perieds
during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Defined Benefit plans

Under a defined benefit plan, it is the Company’s obligation to provide agreed benefils to the employees.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualificd actuary using the projected wnit credit method.




Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless ctherwise stated

3.5

3.6

Employee benefits (continued)

Re-mecasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losscs arc rccognised in other comprehensive income (OCT) in the
period in which they oceur, Remcasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) recognised in other comprehensive incame shall not be reclassified
to statement of profit and loss in a subsequent period. However, the Company transfers those amounts recognised in other comprehensive income within
equity. The Company determines the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used 10 measure
tle defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual pericd to the then-net detined benefit linbility, taking into account any changes in the net
defined benefit lability during the perivd as a resubt of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined
benefit plans arc recognised in (he statement of profit and loss.

Provisions (other than employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, us a zesult of a past svent, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation thal can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is ihe best estimate of the
consideration required to seitle the present obligation at the reporting date, faking into account the risks and uncertaintics surrounding the obligation
Where a provision is measured using the cash [ows cstimated ta settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
{when the cffect of the time valuc of money is material).

A contract is considered to be onerons when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Company from the contract are lower than the
unaveidable cost of meeting its obigations under the contract, The provision for an enerous centract 35 measured at the present value of the lower ol Lthe
expected cost of lerminaling the contract and the expecled net cost of continuing with the centracl. Before such a provision is made, the Company
recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Revenue

The Company generates revenue from rendering of hospital services {hospital and medical services), revenue from sale of pharmacy, revenue from canteen
services, and other operating income. Ind AS 113, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, establishes a comprehensive framework for determining
whether, how much and when revenuc is recognised. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of the goeds or serviees in
an aniount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to teceive in exchange for those products or services. In calculating the variable
considetations. the Company considers the nature and coverage through msurance and other parties. the hustory of adjustments and rejections, and the
prebability of rgjections, discounts, rebutes, price concessions, or cther similar items. The impact of these considerations iy reflected as adjustments to
revenue,

Disaggregation of revene

‘The Cumpany disaggrepates revenue from hospital services (hospital and medical services), revenue from sale of pharmacy, revenue from canteen services.
tevenue from consultancy services and other operating income. The company firther disaggregates revenue from hospital and medical services based on
calegory of customers (cash and credit and bused on nature of treatment (In-patient and Out-patient), The Company believes that this disaggregation best
depicts how Lhe nature, amount, liming and certainty of Company's revenues and cash flows are affected by industry. markel and other economig faglers.

Contrac! halances

The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for salc of services where invoice is raised as trade receivables, where invoice has not been
raised as unbilled revenue and advance consideration as advance from customers.

Performance obligations and revenue recognition policies

Revenue is measured based on (he consideralion specified in a contract with a customer, The Company recognises revenue when it transfers control over a
good or service to a customer. The following details provide information about the nature and timing of the satisfuction of performance obligations m
contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue recognition policics.

(a) Revenue from hospital and medical services

The Company’s revenue from hospitat and medical services comprises of income from haspital services.

Revenue from hospital services to patients is recognised as revenue when the related services are rendered unless significant future uncertainties exist.
Revenue is aiso recognised in relation to the services rendered to the patients who are undergoing treatmen: observation on the balunce sheet date to the
extent of the services rendered. Revenue is recognised net of discounts, concessions given to the paticnts and estimated disallowances for paiients covered
under insurance.

Unbilled receivable represents valug to the extent of medical and healthicare services are rendered to the patients who are undergoing Lreatment/observation
on the batance sheet date 2nd is nat billed as at the balance sheet date.

(b) Revenue from sale of pharmacy

Revenue from sale of phannacy within the hospital premises is recognised when the control in the goods are transferred to the customer and no significant
uncertainty exists regarding the ameount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of the goods and regarding its collection, The amount of
revenue recognised is net of sales retums, taxes and duties, wherever applivable.

(¢) Other operating income
The Company’s revenue from other operating income comprises primarily of revenue from medical courses conducted at the hospilal and revenue from
consultancy services. Revenue from services rendered is bascd on the agreements/armangements with the custerners as the serviee is performed.

{d) Revenue from canteen services

Revenue from canteen services is recognised at 2 point in time when conteol is transferred.

CHARTERED

ACCOUNTANTS
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Leases

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

At inception of an amangement, it is determined whether the arrangement 1s or contains a lcase. Al inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that
contains a lease, the payments and other consideration required by such an arrangement arc separated into those for the lease and those for other elemants
on the basis of their relative fair values,

Company as a lessee

The Company zceounts for each Icase component within the contract as a lease scparately from non-fease components of the contract and ailocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease compenent on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease compenents.

The Company recogniscs right-of-use assct representing its right to use the underlying asset for the Iease temm at the lease commencement date. The cost of
the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lcase payments
\nade at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial dircet costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the Tessee int dismantling and remaving the underlying assct er restering the underlying essct or site on which it is located. The right-of-usc asscts is
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impainment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the sherter of fease term or useful tife of
right-ofause asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use
assels are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts ray not be recoverable. Impairment oss, if any, is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease liability al the present value of the lense payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease
payments arc discounted using the intercst rate impheit n the Jease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined. the
Company uscs incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate.
initially mcasured using the index or rate at the commencernent date, residual value guarantecs, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is
reasonably certain to exercisc that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, it the lease 1erm refleets the lessce excrcising an optien to
terminate the lease, The lcase lability is subscquently remeasured by increasing the carrying ameunt to refleet interest on the lcase lability, reducing the
cartying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect
revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease lability due to modification as an
adjustment to the right-ui-use asset and statement af profit and loss depending upon the nature of modification. Where the canrying amount of the right-of-
use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the
re-measurement in the statement of profit and foss.

The Company has clected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116, Leases, t short-tezm leascs of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less.
The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on 2 straight-line basis over the lease term.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability and the right-of-use asset The related
payinents are recognised as an expense in the peried in which the cvent ot condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in the ling “Other
expenses™ in the statement of profit and loss.

Recognition of interest income or interest expense

{ 2 ) Interest on deployment of surpius funds is recognized using the time proportionate method, based on the transactional interest rates.

( b ) Interest incume or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cush payments or receipts through the expected Life of the financial instrument
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or the ameriised cost of the financial liabtlity.

( ¢ } In caleulating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the assct is not credit-
impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.

Income tax

Inceme tax comptises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to an item recognised
direetly in cquity or in other comprehensive income.

i. Current tax

Current tax compriscs the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or foss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable
in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount cxpected to be paid or reccived after considering the
uncertainty, if eny, refated to income taxes. It is measured vsing tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reparting date.

Cumrent tax asscls and current tax liabilitics are offset only if there is a legally cnforccable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to
realise the asset and scttle the liability on a net basis or simultancously.

A provision is recognised for those matters for which the tax determination is uncertain but it is considercd probable that there will be a fure owtlow of
funds fo a tax authority. The provisions are measured ai the best estimate of the amount expected 1o become payable. The assessment is based on the
judgement of tax professionals within the Company supperted by previous experience in respect of such activities and in certain cases based on specialist
independent tax advice.
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Income tax {continued)

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary difterences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposcs and the
corresponding tax bases used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised for carry forward of unused tax losses and tax credits to e extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which such losses and eredits can he utilised. Deferred tax assels are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilised. The existence of unuscd tax Josses is strong
evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred 1ax asset only to
the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit witl be available against
which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporiing date and are recognised/
reduced 10 the extent that it is probable/ no lenger probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that ure expected to apply to the period when the asset is reulised or the liability is settled, based vn the laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. The measurcment of deferred tax reflects the tax consedquences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, (@ recover or setile the carrying amount of its assets and abilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right 1o offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes
levied by the sarne tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
busis or their tax assets and liabilities will be rezlised simultancously.

Borrowings and Borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initialiy at fair value, net of fransaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit and s over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest rate method. Botrowings are classified as current labilities unless the Company has an unconditional right t defer settlement of
the lability for af least 12 months after the reporting date.

Borrewing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating 1o foreign currency borrowings o the extent that they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs dircetly attributable to acquisition ar construction of
an assct which nceessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended usc are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset until such time
as the asset is substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs arc recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Financial instruments

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other Gnancial assets and financiat liabilitics are initzally
recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrament.

A financial assel or financial labilily is inilially measured at fair value, except for lrade receivables (hat do nol have a significant financing component
which are measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial asscts and financial liabilitics
(other than financial asscts and financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or less - FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
asscts or financial liabilitics, as appropriate, on initiat recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assts or financiai
liabilities at fair vahue through profit or loss arc recognised immediatety in the statement of profit and loss.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial asseis

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as ither at amortised cost, FVTPL or fair value (hrough ather comprehensive income (FYOCT).
Financial assets are not reclussified subsequent to their initial recogoition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for
managing financial assets,

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions;

- the asset is held within a business medel whose objective is to hold assets to cullect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the firancial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

On initizl recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to prasent subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above arc measured at FYTPL. This includes all derivative financial
assets. On initial recognition, the Company may itrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requiremenis 1o be measurcd at amortisedd
cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so climinates or sipnificantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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3.2 Financial instruments (continued)
Finaucial assets: Business model assessment
The Company makes an assessment of the objective af the business model in which a financial asset is held at investment level because this hest reflects
the way the business is managed and informatien is provided to management. The informatien considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for each of such investments and the operation of those policies in practice. These include whether Management's
strategy focuses on caming contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the finuncial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected ¢ash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets:

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks arc managed;

- the frequency, velume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.
Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that de not quatify for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with
the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financtal assets that ure held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fiir value basis arc measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flaws are solely pavments of principal and mterest

For the purposes of this assessment. *principal’ is defined as the fair vatue of the financial asset on initial recognition. *Tnterest’ is defined us consideration
for the time value of money and for the credit sisk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs {e.g., liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of prineipul and interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains & conlractual lerm that could change the tirmng or amount of contractial cash flows
such that it would not meet this condition, In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

-terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

= prepayment and extension features; and

- lerms that limit the Company’s claim to cash (lows [rom specified ussels (e.g.. non-recourse [eatures).

Financiad assets: Subsequent measurement and gains und losses

Financial assets at FYTPL These assels are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including
any interest or dividend income, are recopmiscd in statement of profit and loss.
Financial asscts at amertised cost These asscts are subsequently measured at amertised cost using the cffective interest

method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. [nterest imcome, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in statement profit and loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement of profil and loss.

Equity invesunents at FVOCI These assels are subsequently measured al fair value. Dividends arc recognised as
income in statement profit and loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of]
part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are reeognised in OCI
and arc not reclassified to statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measuvement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at aimortised cost or FVTPL. A financial Yiability is classified as FVTPL if it is ¢lassified as held for trading.
or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FYTPL are measured af faje value and net irains and losses,
incleding any interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Other financial liabrlities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense ard foreign exchange gains and
lusses are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit and loss,

iii. Derecognition

Financial assers

The Company derccognises a financial asset when the eontractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to reccive
the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantizally all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which
the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial assct.

1f the Company cnters into transactions wherchy it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains cither all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred asscts arc not derecognised.

Financial fiabifities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, ot expire, The Compuny alsu derecognises a
financial Liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability
based on the medified terms is secognised ut fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liabilily extinguished and the new
financial liability with modified terms is recognised in statemens of profit and loss.

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company cuirgntly has a
legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends cither 1o sctile them on a net basis or to realise the assct and settle the liability simultancously.




Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3! March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless etherwise siated

313

314

315

316

Earnings / (Loss) per share

The basic camings / (loss) per share (*EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss} after tax for the year attributable to cquity sharcholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares ouistanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit'(foss) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items. if any) as adjusted for
dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares. by the weighted
average number of equity shares cunsidered for deriving basic eamnings per share and the weighted average number of eguity shares which could have been
issued on the conversion of all dilutive polential equity shares.

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period unless issued at a later date. In computing dilutive eartings per
share, enly potential equity shares that are dilutive, i.e.. which reduces eamnings per share or increuses loss per share are included, The dilutive potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair valus (i.c. average marke! value of the outslanding shares).
Dilutive potential equity shares arc determined independently for cach peried presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares
arc adjusted for share splitsireverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

Cash-flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect methed, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any
deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from reguiar revenue generating, tnvesting and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and shert-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less which are subject o
insigniftcant risk of changes in value.

Segment reporting

ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” {“Ind AS 108"} establishes standards for the way that public business enterpriscs report information about operating
scgments and related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas. and major customers, Based on the “management approach” as defined in
Ind AS 108, Operating segments are to be reporied in 2 manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker
{CODM}) hereby as designated as Chief Executive Officer, The CODM evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources on overall basis. The
Company’s sole operating segment is therefore ‘Hospital and Medical Services®.

Operating cycle
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Based on the nature of
products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has
detenmined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

CHARTERED \ ™)
ACCOUNTANTS) )
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§ Capital work-in-progress ("CWIP"}
5.1 Ageing schedule of CWIP

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Pariiculars Less than 1 year  1-2years 2-3 years  More than 3 years digtal
Projects in progress

Balance as at 31 March 2025

Projects in progress 2,021.21 - - - 2.021.21
Total 2,021,21 - - - 2,021.21
Projects in progress

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Projects in progress 2.00 - - " 240
Total 2.0 - - - 2.00

5.2 As on the date of the balance sheet, there arc no capital work-inwprogress profects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded the cost compared te its
revised plan.

6 Other intangible assets

Particulars Computer
Software

Gross carrying value

Balance as at | April 2023 91.73

Additions -

Balance as af 31 March 2024 91.73

Balance as at 1 Apii 2024 91,73

Additions -

Balance as at 31 March 2025 91.73

Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at 1 April 2023 51.40
Amortisation for the year 20,18
Balance as at 31 March 2024 71.58
Balance as at | April 2024 71.58
Amortisaticn for the year 14,66
Balanee as at 31 March 2025 86.24

Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2025 5.49
As at 31 Marech 2024 20.15
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8.2

8.3
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Inventories

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Medicines and medical consunables 227006 240.66
Taotal 227.06 240.66
For details of inventeries pledged, refer Note 17.
Trade receivables

As at AS at

Particulars

31 March 2028

31 March 2024

Current (Unsecured)

Considered good- unsecured 2.119.82 1,359.03
Less: Loss allowance (264 .44) (325.44)
Net trade recefvables 1,855.18 1,033.59
For details of trade receivables pledged, refer Note [ 7.
The Company's exposure to credit and curtency risks and loss allowances related to trads receivables are disclosed in Note 39,
Trade receivables ageing sehedule
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 Muarch 2024
Undisputed trade recetvables- considered geod, unsecured
Qutstanding for tollowing periods from duc date of payment
Not due 59918 o749
Less than § monthis 87789 53087
6 months - | year 37523 209.1%
1-2 years 147.90 95.87
2-3 years 264 34.67
Mare than 3 years 16.98 12095
Total 2,119.82 1.359.03
Laoss allowanee provision matrix- defzult rates applicd at each reporting date
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Due date to | year 5% to 18% 405 - 29%,
1-2 years 19% 10 24% 3% - R1%
More than 2 years 25% to 100% ®2% - 1000,
Movement of less allowance
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balanee at the beginning of the year 325.44 288 85
Provision of loss allowance 42.16 149.61
Bad debls written ofl' (103.16) (113.02)
Balance at the end of the year 26d.44 315.44
Cash and cash equivaleats
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Balances with banks

-On current accounts 19.30 5219
Cash on hand 577 L.69
Cash-in-iransit / cheques in hand 11.74 N
Total 36.81 54.48
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above
Particulars Asat As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Int deposit accounts {with original maturity of moere than 3 menths but less than 12 months) - 36.63
Total - 56.63
Loahs
Particulars . el
31 March 2025 3T March 2024
Non=current

Unsecitred, considered good
Dues from related parties (refer Note 36)

765.37

946.73

Tota]
ptots
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12 Other financial asseis

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Lnsecured, cansidercd good
Non-current

Fixed deposits with banks 56.90 -
Rental and other deposits 273.88 88.61
Total 324.78 §8.01
Current

Unbilled receivables* 2895 2632
Dues from related parties (refer Note 36} 67.58 18.64
interest accerued on fixed deposits with banks 1.5% 1.96
Total 98.11 46.92
Total 421.89 135,53

*Nctof advanees from patients of TNR 22.00 lakhs {as at 31 march 2024: INR 16,97 lakhs)

13 Other assets
Particutars Ag at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Unsecured, considered good
Nan-current

Prepaid expenses 0.64 H1n
Advances for capital goods 17.98 2872
Total 18.62 28,82
Current

Prepaid cxpenses 48.48 a7.17
Advance for supply of poods and services 40.35 48.2%
Other loans and advances 8.64 4.92
Total 97.48 120.37
Total 116.10 149.19
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14 Equity share eapital

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Number of shares Pertr Numbecr of shares Amount

(in lakhs} {in lakhs)
Authorised
Class A Equity shares of INR 1 ¢ach 0.01 .10 0.3 0.10
Class B Equity shares of INR 10 each 101.05 1,010.49 101.063 1.010.49
Total 10{.06 1,010.59 Ehﬂﬁ 15010.59
Issued, subseribed and fully paid-up
Class A Equity shares of INR 10 each .01 010 (121} .10
Class B Equity shares of INR 10 each 70.15 701.49 7015 1.49
Taotal 70.14 70|£9 70.16 701.59
(a) Reconcilintion of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount

(in lakhs) (in lakhs)

Class A equity shares Equity shaves of INR 10 each flly paid-up
Balance as at the beginning of the year 0.0l 018 Q.01 0.10
Issue of ¢quity shares . - B
Balance as at the end of the year (L0t 0.10 .01 0.10
Class B equity shares Eguity shaves of INR 10 each fidly paid-up
Balance as al the beginning of the year 7015 701.49 70.15 "0].49
{ssue of equity shares 5 . L g
Bualance as at the end of the year 70.15 F01.49 .15 71.49

(b} Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has two classes of equily shares as follows

Class A cquify shares: Class A equily shares are held by Aster DM Ilealthcare Limited. The holders of Class 'A’ Equily Shares shall be entitled to 3,200 votes
per Class ‘A" Equity Share on each item put to vote at the shareholders’ meeting, such that the holders of Class 'A' Equity shares shal! at all times have 5% of the
voting rights in the Company. 1t the Company proposes to make a preferential/rights bonus issue of the Class "A' Equity Shares, the Company shall simultancously
issue 1o Aster DM Healthcare Limided such number Class *A' Equity Shares such that the voting rights of Aster DM llealthcare Limited post such preferential
rights bonus shares issuance made by the Company in respect of Class 'A' Equity Shares in the {'ompany shall be at least 51%. In the cvent of any scheme,
arrangement or amalgamation in accordance with the Act and subject to other approvals and other Applicable Law which presents tor amalgamation of the
Company with or into any other entity and which results in & share swap or exchange of shares, Aster DM Healthcare Limited shall receive such number of equity
shares with differential voting rights or such other instrument of the other entity such that the voting nghts of Aster DM Healtheare Limited in such other entity
shall not be less than 51%,

Class B Equity shares: Equity shares are entitled to reccive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity sharcholder on a pell (not on
show of hands) is in proportion to the shareholders' share as specified in the share subscription sgrecment. Voting rights cannot be exercised in tespect of shares
on which any ¢zll or other sums presemly payable have not been paid. Faiture to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture af the shares. In case
of liquidaticn or winding up of the Company, the distributions to the holders of equity shares shall, subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, only be made
atter the requisite distributions are made to the holders of Class A equity shares.

{c) Shares held by ultimate holding company

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
(in lakhs) (in [akhs)
Class A equity shaves of INR. 10 each fully pald-up held by
Aster DM Heattheare Limited, Holding and Ultimate holding compuny 0.01 0.10 0.01 2106
Class B equity shaves of INR. 10 cach fully paid-up held by
Aster DM Heaithcare Limited, 1olding and Ultimate holding company .15 701.49 .18 701.49
(d) Dectails of shareholders holding more than §% shares of the Company
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Name of sharcholder Number of shares % Number of shares Yo
(in laikhs) {in lakhs)
Class A equity shares of INR. 10 cach fully paid-up held by
Aster DM Healthcare Limited Q.01 100.00% 0.01 138,008,

Class 8 equity shares of INR. 1} each filliy paid-up held by
Aster DM lHealthcare Limited 70.15 99.99% 70,15 99.99",




Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ¢nded 31 March 2025
All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated

(e) Details of sharcholding of Promotcrs

Promoter name Shares held as at 31 March 2025

Nuntber of sharcs Ya
{in lakhs)

Percentage change
during the vear
ended
31 March 2028

Pereentage change
during the year
ended
31 March 2024

Claxs A equity shaves of INR. 10 each fidly paid-up held by
Asler DM Hezlthcare Limited 0.01 1006.00%

Class B equity shares of INR. 10 each fully paid-up held by
Aster DM Heaitheare Limited 70,15 99.99%

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

(fy Shares reserved for issuc under optjons and contracts
The Company has not reserved any shares for issuing under optiens and contracts

{g) Details of bonus shares issued during the past 5 years immediately preceeding 31 March 2025
The Company has not issucd any honus shares issued during the past § years immediately preceeding 31 March 2025

(h) Details of shares issucd for consideration other than for cash during the past 5 years immediately preceeding 31 March 2025
The Company has not allotted any equity shares as fully paid-up without consideration being received in cash during the past 5 year immediately precceding 11

Mazch 2025

(i) Details of huyback of shares during the past § years immediately preceeding 31 March 2025: Nil
The Company has aiot bought back any shares during the past 5 years immediately preceeding 31 March 20235

15 Other equity

Particulars

Asat
3 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Reserves and surplus
Securities premiunt
- Used to record the premium received on issue of shares_ It is
utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companics Act.
2983

Retained eurnings
- Retained eamings comprises of the amounts that can be distributed
by the Company as dividends to its cquity share holders

items of other comprehensive [ncome
Remeasurement of net defined benetit liability/ (asset), net of tax
- Pertains to the remeasurement of the net defined henefit liabitity/
(asset) recognised net of tax

2,734.24

(1.290.14)

2,734 24

(532.4m)

Total

1.444.1¢
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16 Provisions

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Non~current

Provision for emplovee hencfits

Net defined benefit abligation - Gratuity {Refer Note 16.13
Tutal

Empleyee benefits
Defined contribution plan

122.85

73.68

122.85

75.08

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (*Grawity Act’). Under the Gratuity Act, employee who has completed
five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The granvity benefit provides for a fump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in
employment or on termination of emptoyment of an amount equivalent to 15 7 30 days’ salary payable for each completed vear of service. The gratwity plan 15 a
funded plan and the Cempany makes centributions to L1C of India. Liabilitics with regard to the Gramity Plan arc determined by sctuarial valuation on the
reporling date. The gratuity ebligation is recogniced subject 1o 4 maximum timit of INR 20,00,000. as prescribed under the Payiment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

a. Net defined benefit obligation / (asset)

Particulars As at As at
31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation 151.63 116.849
Faijr value of plan assets (28.78) (41.21)
Net defined benefit obligation 122.85 75.68
b. Reconciliation of present vatue of the defined benefit obligation
. As at As at
Particalars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 116.8% 8%.51
Benefits paid 116.42) {8.21)
Curzent service cost 28.55 23.08
[nterest cost 818 6.73
Actuarial (gain)' loss recognised in other comprehensive income
- changes in financial assumptions 7.44 2.40
- experiense adfustiments 6.99 0.5
Transfer in out - 4.90)
Balance at the end of the year 151.63 116.89
Reconciliation of the present value of plan assets
Balance at the beginning of the year 41.21 38.62
Contribution by emplayer by benefit payment {.5% 7.58
Contribution by cmployer into the fund - -
Renefits paid (16.42) (R.21)
Enterest income 2,82 2.40
Return on plan assets, exciuding amount included in net imterest on the net defined benefit loss {pain} (1.41) {.15
Balance at the end of the year 28.78 41.21
Defined henefit obligation (net) 122.85 75.68

¢. Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Current service cost
Interest cost
Gratuity cost

Remeasurements recognised in Other comprehensive income
Actuarial gain'(loss) on defined benefit obligation

CHARTERED
AGCOUNTANTS)

28.55 23.06
536 393
3391 26,99
(14.84) (1.75)
(14.84) (1.75)
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16,1 Employee henefits (continued)
d. Actoarial valuation
The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit methad.
The defined benefit plan typically exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salury risk.

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability denominated in Indian Rupee is calculated using a discount raic)
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reparting period on govemment bonds. For other defined
bencfit plans, the discount rate is determined by reterence te high quality eorporate band yiclds when there is a deep
rmarket for such bonds; if the retum on plan asset is below this rmte, it will create a plan deficit, Currently the plan in India
is investments in govemment securitics and other debt instruments.

Interest rale risk A decrease in the bond interesl rate will incregse the plan liability

Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is caleulated by reference to the best estimate of the mortatity of
plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the [ife expectancy of the plan participants will
increase the plan’s liubitity.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculzled by reference 1o the fulure salaries of plan participants.
As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s Hability.

e. i) Actuarial assuruptions
Principal actuarial assumptions al the reporting date (expressed as weighted average)

. For the year ended For the vear ended
Particulars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Digcount rate 6.50% 7.00%
Future salary growth 8,00% 8.00%
Adtrilion rate Below 35 years: 35%  Belaw 3§ years: 35%
35 years & above: 3% 35 years & above: 395

Return on plan assets 7.00% 7.20%

Murtality rate TALM 2012-14 Ult. IALM 2012-14 UL
Retirement age 60 Years 60 Years
Weightape average duration of obligation 9 Ycars 9 Ycars

Assumptions regarding future mortality experienee arc sct in aceerdance with the published statistics by the Indian Assured Lives Mortality (IALM).
The Company assesses these assumptions with its projected long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry standards. The discount tate is based on the
gavernmend securitivs yicld.

ii) Sensitivity analysis

Signtficant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and withdrawal rate. Reasonably
possible changes at the reporting date ta one of the avtuarial assumptions. holding all other assumptions constant would have affected the defined benefit obligation
by the amounts shown helow:

Partieulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Increase Decrease [nerease Decrease
Future salary growth { 1% movement) 16.37 14.2% 12.94 11.23
Discount rate (1% movement) (14.32) 16.79 11.25 13.22
Withdrawal rae {1% movernent) (2.46) 2.69 t.59 1.72

The sensitivity analysis presented sbove muy not be representative of the actusl change in the defined benefit cbligation us & is unlikely that the changes in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumpttons may be correlated. In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value
of the defined benefit obligation has been ealeulated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the sane as that applicd in
caiculating the defined benetit obligation Hability recognised in the halance sheet. There was o change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the
sensitivity analysis from prior years,

Defined contribution plan
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contribution to provident fung R7.99 80.65
Employee State Insurance 10.31 11.84
Labour Welfare Fund 0.03 26.99
Companents recognised in the statemcnt of profit and loss 98.33 rrm==ae]]9 48
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18.

18.

17 Borrewings

5

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024

Current

Sectred - at amortised cost

Cash credit and overdrafl fucilities [rom banks 19.47 4830

Unsecwred - at amortised cost

Eoan from holding company# (refer note 36} 2.750.00 -

Total 2,769.47 49,30

Lender

Details of loan

Charge registration details with MCA*

as on 31st March
2025

Nature of Security Signing date of Loan

Agreement

Actual Charge
registration date

The overdrafl from Federal
Bunk 1= availed at a nually
agreed intgrest rate and is
sectred by exclusive charge on
the curtent assels of the
company (both present and
future)

Federal Bank Limited Lean autstanding
arount - 19.47 lakhs
(31 March 2024:
4930 lakhs)

Tenure - On demand

interest rate - 8.6%

Date of loan agreement - 31
August 2016

Charge ercativn date -
3t Angust 2016
Charge modification
date - 15 July 2019

* The due date for registering the above charges with the MCA is within 30 days from the respective dates of exceution of the MOF date or the Joan agreement

signing date.

# Loan from halding company is zepayable on demand. Interest rate shall be the average cost of the borrowing + 0.50%.

Trude pavables

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Total outsianding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 164,38 39.43
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises YiHL02 $87.53
Tatal 1.064.40 926.%6
All trade payables are 'cumment’. The average credil peried Laken is 30-60 days.
The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks relazed to trade payables is disclosed in Note 39
Refer Note 35 for the balances payable to related parties,
Trade payables ageing schedule Unbilled Outstanding for following perinds from due date of payment Total
Dues Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 yenrs Mare than 3 years

Balance as at 31 March 2025

Micro and smalf enterprises - 164.38 - - - 164.38

Others 339.86 503.98 14.26 11.05 30.87 K302
Total 339.86 668.36 14.26 .05 30.87 1,064.40
Balance as at 31 March 2024

Micro and small enterprises - 3943 - - - 3943

Others 241.78 582.22 22.43% 30.86 10.22 §87.53
Total 241.78 621.65 2245 30.86 10.22 926.96
Drisclosures as required under the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Develepment Act, 2006 ("the Act”) based on the information available with the

Company are given below:

For the year ended

For the year ended

e 31 March 2015 31 March 2024
The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year 164,38 3043
The interest due on the principat remaining outstanding us at the end of the year - 331
The 2mount of interest paid by the Company along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier - -
beyond the appointed day during the year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been pard - 1226
but beyond the uppointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act

The amuunt of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of Lhe year - 15.57
The amount of further interest remaining duc and payable even in the succeeding years, unti! such date = 204
when the intercst dues as above arc actvally paid to the small eaterprise, for the purpese of disallowance as

a deductible expenditure under the Act

Note: The Ministry of Micro, Smali and Medium Enterpriscs has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and

Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entreprencurs Memorandurn Number as allocated afler filing uf the Memorandum

Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable fo such cnterprises as at March 31. 2025 has been made in
information reccived and available with the Company. Further in view of the management, the impact of interest, if any,

received any ¢laim for interest from any supplier.

the financial statements based on
that may be payable m accordance with

the provisions of the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘The MSMED Act') is not expected lo be malerigl-F5s
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19 Other finaneial Habilities

20

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Current

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings® (refer note 36) 107.68 "

Dues to related party (Refer Note 36) 358.00 339.58

Dues to creditors for capital gooads 19.14 51.08

Total 484.82 391.23

* The details of interest rates, vepaymen? and other tenns are disclosed in Note 17.

The Company’s exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to the above financial liabilities is disclosed in Note 39,

Other liabilities

Particolars As at As at

31 Mareh 2025

31 March 2024

Current
Statutory dues payables SR.E3 42.32
Tatal 58.83 42,32
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21

(i

(ii)

(i

(iv}

22

23

Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Revenue from hospital and medical services
Revenue from pharmacy

Revenue from canteen services

Other operating income

Total

6,772.05 5.493.67
515.27 302.41

- 6.8
47.78 18.97
7.335.10 582186

Revenue {rom operations includes revenus from related parties of INR .70 lakhs (31 March 2024: 20.93 {akhs). refer Note 36,

Category of Customers

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2024

Cash {Including Cards/Unified payments Interface'wallets/bank transfer/Cheques)
Credit {Including CoPay)

Revenue from hospital and medical services and pharmacies

Others

Revenue from Operations

Nature of treatment

346610 3,034.93
3.821.22 2,361.15
7,287.32 5,796.08

47.78 2578
7,335.10 5,821.46

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
In- patient 5.570.78 4465.80
Cut- patient 1,201.27 1.027 81
Revenue from hospital and medical services 6.772.08 5,493.67

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contract price is as follows:
Healtheare services ([ncluding other operating income)

Particnlares

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Contract price (as reflected in the invoice raised on the customer as per the terms of the contract
with customer)

Reducticn in the form of discounts and disallowances

Revenne recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Other operating incoms

7,672.07 0.067.61
(336.97) (245.75)
7.335.10 5.821.86¢

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Revenue from medical courses
Revenue from consultancy services
Others

Taotal

Other income

25.29 10.05
10.86 -

11.63 R.92
47,78 18.97

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Interest income:
on finanvial assets carried at amortised cost (Lease deposits)
on fixed deposits with banks
Loan to related parties (refer Note 36)

Interest on income tax refund

Forgign ¢xchange Gain (Net)

Other Non operating Income

Tatal

Purchases of medicines and medical consumables

19.73 4.96
3.02 4.16
70.98 105.75
983 18,12

- 13
44.71 8.88
139,27 134.00

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Medicines and medical consumables*®
Taotal

*Includes purchases of medicines and medical consumables of Nil {31 March 2024: INR 11,94 lakhs) firom related parties, reter Note 36,

1,447.54

1,063.54

1,447.54

1,063.54
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26

27

28

2y

Changes in inventories

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

Eor the year ended
31 March 2024

QOpening stock
Closing stock
Total

Professional fees to consultant doctors

240,66 164.79
(227.06) (240.66)
13.60 (75.87)

Particelars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Professional fees to consultant doctors
Total

Labaratory outsourcing charges

2.122.14

1,672.54

2,122.14

1,672.54

PFarticulars

For the year ended
31 MMarch 225

For the vear ¢ended
31 March 2024

Laboratery outsourcing charges*
Total

*Includes laboratory oulscureing charges of INR .68 lakhs {31 March 2024; INR 197.92 lakhs) from related partics. refer Note 36,

Employee benefits expense

30.45

211.31

30.45

21031

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Salaries and aliowances
Coniribution to provident and other funds (refer Note 16.1)
Staff welfare cxpense’

Expenses related to post employment defined benefit plans (refer Note 16.1)

Total

1,523.65 1.372.50
9R.33 119.48
71.23 69.89
33.91 -

1,727.12 1.561.87

“Includes staff welfure expenses of INR 2.50 kskhs (31 March 24:24: Nil) from reluted partics. refer Note 36,

Finance cost

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Interest on bank borrowings
Interest on leasg liabilitics (refer Note 35)
Less : Amounts inctuded in the cost of qualifying asscts

Interest on loan to related parties (refer Note 36)
FLess : Amounts included in the cost of qualifying asscts

Other borrowing costs
Total

Depreciation and amortisation

3.04
1,600.21
(1,270.58)

7.32
317.54

329.63
[19.63
(93.48)

317.54

26.15
1.91

360.73

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Depreciation en property. plant and equipment {refer Note 4)
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (refer Note 35)
Less : Amounts included in the cost of qualifying assets

Amortisation on intangible assets (refer Note 6)
Total

268.10 445.07
9RR.94 342.49
(504.95) -
483.99 34249
14.66 20.i8
766.75 $07.74
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30 Other expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
General Consumable 0.29 .
Food and beverage 85,62 60,66
Power, water and fuel 195.53 206.40
Water charges 17.43 6,90
Housckeeping, security and others 7741 3147
Leyal, professional and other consullancy 156.09 155.50
Auditors remuneration (refer Note 34) 12.59 12.59
Rent (refer Note 35) 186,97 138.02
Repairs and maintenance - plant and machinery 200.52 128.33
Repairs and maintenance - building 4.62 13.95
Repairs and maintenance - Others 130.80 126.13
Advertising and promotional 288.75 254.51
Rates and taxes 22.32 22.56
Allowances for credit losses on financial asscts (refer Note 8.3) 42.16 144,61
Travelling and conveyance 62.57 71.84
Loss an salc of property. plant and equipment 2.99 0.55
Corporate social responsibility (refer Note 30.1) - 22.0%
Insurance 24.65 13.31
Communication 21.23 22.53
Office expenses 152.72 62,02
Bunk Charges 21.68% 25.36
Miscellaneous expenses 27.9¢ 28.73
Total 1,734.93 1,552.96
30.1 Details of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
- Amount required o be spent by the Company during the year 5 8.64
~ Amount of expenditure incurred 22.05
Construction/acquisition of an asset - :
On purposes other than above 5 2208

- Shortfall at the end of the year . .
- Total of previous year shortfall
- Reason for shortfall Not applicable Naot applicabie

a) Promoting health care
including preventive
health carey Promoting
education, ncluding
special education and
employment enhrancmg
vocation skills especially
= Nature of CSR activities Not applicable  among children, women,
clderly and the differently
abled and livelihood
enhancement projects.
b} Disaster management,
including relief,
rehabilitation aad
reconstruction activities
- Details of related party transactions Not applicablc Not applicable
- Whether pravision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual Not applicable Not applieable
- Amount spent during the year on:
Construction/acquisition of an asset - «
On purposes other than above =
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31 Income taxes (net)
{a) Income tax asscts/(Tiability)

Particulars L] Asint
31 March 20258 31 March 2024
Income tax payments, including taxes withheld 219.53 253.94
Less: Provision made towards tax liabilitics (17.42) (1742)
Net income tax assets/(liability) 202.11 236.52
{b) Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss
Particulars st As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current tax pertaining to carlicr years 14.06 .
Deferred tax 413 0.49
Tax ¢xpense for the year 15.13 0.49
(¢} Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Deferred tax (4.13) (0.49)
Tax expense for the year {4.13) (0.49)

(d) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

The standard rate of corporation tax applicd to reported profit is 27.82 per cont {31 March 2024: 27.82 per cent). The Company has not opted for

concessional tax rate regime.

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 21124
Loss before tax (728.90) (1,163.09)
Stututory income tax rate 27.42% 27.82%
Tax expenses /(asset) - -
Other temporary differences 413 0.49
Tax expense of earlier years 14,04 -
Non-deductible expenses/ permanent differences - -
Income tax expense 18.13 0.49

(e) Movement in temporary differences:

Recopnioed Recognised in
Particulars Balance as at  through other Sratem:;n ¢ Profit Balance as at
1 April 2024 comprehensive . 31 March 2025
h and Loss
income
Provision for employee benefits - 4.13 (4.13) -
Net deferred tax (liabilities) / assets - 4.13 {4.13) -
Recognised

Balance as at through other

Recognised in
g Bulance as at

Particulars 1April 2023 comprehensive  Serement of Profit o eh 2024
. and Loss
ncomne
Provision for employee benefits - 049 (0.49) -
Net deferred tax (liabilities) / asscts - 0.49 {0.49) -

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and labilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off cument tax asscts and current tax habilities
related te income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to seitle its current tax assets and liabilities on a met basis. The
Company recognises deferred tax assets only 1o the extent of deferred tax linbility, if any, on account of taxable temporary differences.

(f) Deferred tax assets not recognised on grounds of prudence

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the fellowing items, because it is not probable that fture taxable profit will be available against

which the Company can use the benefits there from:

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Particulars

Gross amount Deferred tax

Gross amount Deferred tax

Deductible temporary ditferences 725.5% 20186 794.29 220.97
Imipact on account of Ind AS 116 - Leases 580,28 161.43 20341 56.59
Total 1,305.86 363.29 997.70 277.56

CHARTERED

ACCOUNTANT
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321 Contingent liabilities and commitments

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Commitments

Estimated anount of contracts remaining to be exseuted on capital sccount and not provided for 245 .06 013

(net of capital advances) ’ -

Tatal 285.06 0.13

Contingent liabilities

Medical claims against the Company (refer Note ¢) 80).81 129.22

Total 40.81 129,22

#. On 2&th February 2019, the Hen'ble Supreme Count of Indiu has delivered a judgment clarifying the principles that need to be applied in determining
the components of salaries and wages on which Provident Fund {PF) contributions need to be made by establishments. Busis this judgment, the
Company has re-computed its liubility towards PF from the month of March 2019 and has paid PF as per Supreme Court judgement. In respect of the
catlier periodssyears, the Company has been legally advised that there are numerous interpretative challenges on the application of the judgment
retraspectively. Based on such legal advice, the management believes that it is impracticable at this stage to reliably measure the provision required, it
any, and accordingly. no provisien has boen made towards the same. Necessary adjustments, if any, will be made to the books as more clarily emerges
on this subject.

b. The Company does not have any long-term commitments or material non-cancellable contractual commitments coniracts, mchiding derivative
contracts fur which there were any material foresecable losses,

¢. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and procecdings and has adcquately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as
contingent liability where applicable, in its financial statements, The Company does net expeet the cutcome of these proceedings to have o matcrially
adverse effect on its financial position. The Company dacs not expect any reimbursement in respect of the above contingent liabilitics.

33 Earnings per share
The calculation of profit attributable Lo equity share halders and weighted average number of equily shares outstanding for the purpase of hasic eamnings
per share calculatiens arc as follows:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Farrlgulars 31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
Net loss for the year, atiributable to the equity sharg holders {757.74) (1,163.58)
Weighted average number of equity shares of INR 10 each used for caleulation of basic earning per .10 7016
shaze (in lakhs)

Weighted average nurnber of equity shares of INR 10 each used for caleulation of diluted eamning 76.16 70.16
per share {in lakhs)

Loss per share, basic (10,80} {16.58)
Loss per share, dilutcd (10.80) (16.5R8)

14 Payment to auditers

For the year ended

For the year ¢nded

s 31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024
For statutory audit (refer Note 30) 12.59 12.59
Total 12.59 12.59

\
\
!
f
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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35 Leases
The Company has taken hospital premises on lease from various partics from where healtheare and managcment services arc rendered. The leases
typically run for a period of 1 year - 15 years, 1¢asc payments are rencgotiated neasing the expiry to reflect market rentals.
{i) Lease liabilities
Following are the changes in the lease liabilities for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024;

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening balance 3,946.16 4,096 39
Additiens 30,092.07 -
Finance cost acerucd during the year 329.63 317.54
Amounts included in the cost of qualifying asscts 1.270.58 -
Payment of lcase liabilitics (708.55) 470.77)
Closing balance 34,929.8% 3,946.16
Non-current lease liabilities 34.617.64 3.860.84
Currenl lease liabilities 312.25 8532

(i} Maturity analysis — contractual undiscounted cash flows

Particulars Gl feit
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Less than ong year 1.497.64 391,12
One to five years 12,4416 1.659 .46
More than five years 1.04.062.49 460513
Total undiscounted lease liabilitics 1.18,001.29 6.745.65
(iii) Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are presented on the balance sheet.
Particulars aslal et
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Gross carrying value
Opening balance 4914.32 491432
Addition te right-of-usc assets 31,595.80 -
Total gross carrying value 36,510.12 4,914.32
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening balance 1.171.57 R20.08
Depreciation for the year (refer Nute 29) 483.99 342.49
Amounts included in the cost of qualifying assets 504.95 -
Total accumulated Depreciation 2,160.51 1,171.57
Net Ralance 34,349.61 3,742.75
(iv) Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss
Particulars At L
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Depreciation on right-of-use asscts (refer Note 29) 483.9¢ 342.49
Interest on lease liabilitics {refor Note 28) 329.63 317.54
Lease rental expenscs for lease where Ind AS 116 is not applicable (refer Notc 30) 186.97 138.02
Total 1,000.59 798.05
{¥} Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows
Particulars N, As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Total cash outflow for leases (708.55) 470.77

Tatal (708.55) 470.77
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36 Related parties
(ij  Names of related parties and description of relationship with the Company:

(a) Holding Company Aster DM Healthcare Limited, [ndia

(b} Fellow Subsidiaries Aster Clinical Lab LLP, India
Dr, Rataesh Cardiac And Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
Hindustan Pharma Distributors Private Limited
DM Med City Hospitals (India) Private Limited

{c} Key managerial personne! and Mr. Abdul Salam Amecrali { Director)
their relatives (KMP) Me. Sunil Kumar M R (Director}
Mr. Thadathil Joseph Wilson (Direcior)

fif) Related party transactions and outstanding balances:

SI. No. [Name of related party Nature of transactions Related party transactions Qutstanding balance
the vear | For the yes
Forendezl endeefi“r s U
31 March | 31 March
31 Marceh 31 March 2025 2024
2025 2024 }
1 Aster DM Healthcare Limited Re-imbursement of expense 160.79 22741 (360.37) (272.59)
HRM Medical Imaging 0.43 76.14
Sale of property, plant and equipment (12.33) - - -
Intercompany Loan received 2,750.00 - (2,750.00) -
Interest Expense on Loan 119.64 - (107.6%) -
2 |Aster Clinical Lab LLP Labs Testing fees 0.25 121.78 2.30 (67.02)
Purchase of Medical Consumables - 11.94
Revenue from operations {net) (0.70) -
Expenses incurred on behalf 2.14 (0.55)
3 Dr. Ramesh Cardiac And Revenue from operations (nel) - (20.93) - N
Multispeciality Hospital Private Limited
4 |Hindustan Pharma Distributers Private Limited Intercompany Loan issugd - - 765.37 Y46 73
Intercarpany Loan recovered (181.36) (533.27)
Interest Income on Loan (70.98} (105.75) G7.58 15.64
5 DM Med City Hospitals ¢Indiz) Private Limited Staff Training Expenses 2.50 - 0.02 -
Particulars Asat I April| Advanced during | Repaid doring | Impairment/ As at
2024 the year the year Write off 31 March
during the 2025
year
Loans
Hindustan Pharma Distributors Private Limited 946.73 - (181.36) - 765.37
Total loans 946.73 - (181.36) 5 765.37
Particulars Asat April| Advanced during | Repaid during Impairment/ As at
2023 the year the year Write off 31 March
during the 2024
year
Loans
Eindustan Pharma Distrtbutors Private Limited 1,560.00 - (553.27) - 946.73
Total lozns 1,500.00 - (553.27) - 946.73

37 Segment reporting
Ind AS 108 “Opcrating Scgment™ (*Ind AS 108"} ustablishes standards for the way that public busingss snterprises report information about operating segments and
related disclosures about producis and services, geographic areas, and major customers. Based on the "management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108, Operating
segments are ta be reported in & manner consistent wilh the intemal reporting provided to the Chref Operating Decision Maker {(COTM) hereby designated as Chicd
Fxecutive Officer. The CODM evaiuates the Company's performance and allocates resources on overall basis, The Company's sole operating segment i therefore
'Hospital and Medical Services’,

The Company's business primarily falls withir a single geographical segment, namely India.
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38 Capital management
The Company's policy is to maintzin a stable capital base 5o 2s to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain fiture development of the business,
Management monitors capital on the basis of remurmn on capital empleyed as well as the debt to total cquity ratie.
For the purpose of debt to 10tal equity ratio, debt considered is long-term and short-term borrowings. Total equity comprise of issued share capital and all other equity
Teserves.

The capital structure as of 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, was as follows:

Particulars aln e

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Total equity attributable te the equity sharcholders of the Company 214569 2,903.43
As a percentage of total capilal 5% 42%
Long-term borrowings including cusrent maturitics 2,769.47 44,30
Non cutrent lease Liability 34.617.64 3,860.84
Lurrent lease liability 312.25 8532
Total borrowings 37.699.36 3,995.46
As a percentage of total capital 95%% L
Total capital {(Equity and Borrowings) 19,845.05 &,498.89

39 Financial Instruments- Fair values and risk management

A Accounting classifications and fair values
The follosving table shows the camying amounts and fair values of financigl assets and financial Yabilities, ncluding their ievels in the fair value hierarchy.
As at 31 March 2025

Particulars Note Carrying amount Fair value

Financial Other

assets at | Mandatortly fnancial Tnm.l -

amortised | at FVTPL | labilitics at C‘:,’;']ﬁ'e"g Revel T Level 2| Level 3 .

cost amortised cost
Asseis
Financial assets not measured at fair value
(i) Loans 11 765.37 - - 765.37 - - - -
{ii) Other financial assets 12 422.89 - - 422.89 - - - -
{iii} Trade receivables 8 1,855.38 - - 1,855.38 - - o -
(iv} Cash and cash equivalents 9 36.81 - - 36.81 - - - -
(v) Other bank balances 10 - - - - - - - -
Total financial assets 3,080.45 - - 3,080.45 - - - E
Lizhilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
{1) Lease liabilities 35 - - 34,929 89 34,929.89 - - - -
H) Other financial liabilitics 19 - - 484.82 484 82 - - 5 -

(iii) Borrowings 17 - - 2,769.47 2.76%9.47 - - - -
(iv] Trade payables 18 - - 1,064.40 1,064.40 - - - -
Total - - 39.248,58 | 39.248.58 - - - -
As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Note Carrying amount Fair value

Financial Other

assets at | Mandatorily[  financial Tma.l .

amortised | at FVTPL | liabilities at Carrying |Level 1| Level 2 Level 3 Totzl

: value
cast amortised cost

Asseis
Financial assets not ed at fajr value
(i) Loans 11 ©46.73 - - 946.73 - - - -
(11} Other financial assets 12 135.53 - - 135.53 - - - -
(iii) Trade receivables g 1,033.59 - - 1,033.59 B = - =
(iv) Cash and cash equivalents 9 54.48 - - 54.48 - - - -
(v) Other bank balances 10 56.63 - - 56.63 - B - -
Total financial assets 2,226.96 - - 2,226.96 - - - -
Liabilities
Financjal liabilities at amortised cost
(1) Lease liahilities 3s - - 3,946.16 3,946.16 - - - E
(i1} Other financial lizbilitics i9 - - 391.23 301,23 - - - -
(i) Borrowings i7 B - 4930 46.30 - - - 8
(iv) Trade payables i8 - - 926.96 926.96 - - - .
Total - - 5.313.65 5,313.65 - - - -




Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
All ampunts in INR lakhs, unless otherwisc stated

39  Financial risk management {(continued)

B The Company's activities expose it 10 a variety of financial risks: marker risk, credit risk and liquidizy risk.
i) Risk management framework
The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibitity for the establishment and aversight of the risk management framework. The Company's audit and nisk
maragement committee oversees how management monitors corplisnce with the risk management pulicies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation 1o the risks faced by the Company. The committee is assisted in its aversight role by intemai audit. Internal audit undertakes both
regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management contrals and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit and risk management committec.

i) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial insturent or cusiener conlracl, teading to financial loss. The credit risk, arises
principally from jts operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities, meluding deposits with banks and other financial instruments.

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and ereditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom credit has been granted after obtaining necessary
approvals for eredit. The collection from trade receivables are monitered on a continyous basis by the recervables team.

The Cempany always measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount cqual to lifetime ECL. The expected eredit losses on trade receivables are
estimated using a provisien matix by reference to past defauit experience of the debtors and an analysis of the debtors’ current inancial position, adjusied for factors
that are specific ko the debtors, general ceonomic conditions of the industy in which the debtors operate. nd an assessntent of both the current as woll as the forecast
direction of conditicas at the reporting date.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reponting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to INR [L855.38 Iakhs (31 Marcl; 2024: INR 1,033 59
lakhs) (refer Note 8) and unbilled receivables amomring ro INR 25.95 lakhs (31 March 2024: INR 26.32 lakhs) (refer Note 12).

The movement in lifetie ECL in respect of trade and other receivables durtng the year was as follows:

Allowance for Credit Loss For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance at the beginning 325.44 284,85
Disallowsnees uftset (103.18) 149.61
Tmpairment loss recognised 42.16 {113.02)
Balance at the end 264.44 32544

No single customer accounted for more than 10% of the revenue as of 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, There is no signiticant concentration of credit risk.
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by international an domestic credil rating agencies.

iii) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in mesting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are scttled by delivering cush
or another finuncial asser. Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the beard of dircetors, which has established an appropriate lyquidity risk
management frartework for maragement of the Company's shert, medium ang long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company's approach to
managing liquidity is to cnsure, as far as possible, that it wili always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stecssed
conditions, witheut incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Campany's reputation.

The 1able below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financia! liabilities as of 31 March 2025:

Particulars Less than 1 year  More than [ vear Total

Berrowings 2.769.47 - 2,769.47
Lease liabilities 1,.497.64 1,16.503.65 1.18,001.29
Trade payables 1,064.40 - 1,064 41
Other financial liabilitics (excluding borrowings and trade payables) ) 484.82 - 48482
Total 5,816.33 1,16,503.65 1,22,319,98

The Company is using the cash inflows from the financial assets and the available bank fzcilities to marage the liquidity. The table below provides the gash inflows
from sigaificant finangial assets as ot 31 March 2025:

Particulars Less than I year More than | vear Total

Loans - 765.37 765.37
Other financial assets 98.11 32478 42280
Trade receivables 1,R55.38 B 1,855.38
Cash and cash equivalents 36.81 - 3681

Other bank balances = S -
Total 1,990.30 1.090.15 3,080.45
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3¢ Financlal risk management (continued)
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilitics as of 31 March 2024:

Particulars Less than | year More than 1 vear Taotal

Current Barrowings 49.30 - 49.30
Lease liahilities 391,12 6,354.52 £.745.65
Trade Payables 926.96 - 926.96
Other financial liabilities 301.23 - 391.23
Total 1,758.61 6,354.52 §,113.14

The Company is using the ¢ash inflows from the financial assets and the available bank facilitics to manage the liguidity, The table below provides the cash intlows
frem significant financial assets as of 31 March 2024:

Particolars Less than 1 year More than | vear Tatal

Loans - 946.73 946.73
Other linancial assels 46.92 8R8.61 135,53
Trade receivables 1,033.59 - 14133.59
Cash and cash cquivalents 54.48 - 54.48
Other bunk balances 56.63 - 56.63
Total 1,191.62 1,035.34 1,226.96

Financial assets of INR 3,080.46 lakhs as at 31 March 2025 (INR 2,226.94 lakhs 31 March 2024) carried at amortised cost is in the form of cush wnd cash
equivalents, deposits, ete, where the Company has assessed the counterparty credit risk. Trade receivables of INR 1.855.38 lakhs as at 31 March, 2035 {INR
1.033.59 lakhs 31 Macch 2024} carried at amorfised cost and is valued considering provision for allowance using expected credit Toss method (it any).

iv) Market Risk
Market risk is the visk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will flucteate because of changes in market prices, such as foreigm exchange
rates, inferest rates and equity prices.

v} [aterest raie risk
The Company does not have any borrawings which are having floating interest rate and hence is not exposed to interest rate tisk both fixed and floating interest,

vi) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk {5 Lhe risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instument will fluctuate hecause of chunges in foreign exchange rate, The
majority of the Company's assets are located in India and Indian rupee beng the functional currency for the Company. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes
in foreign exchange rates 15 minintal and not significant.

40 The Indian Parliument has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 and Cade en Wages, 2019 ['Codes'} relating to employee benefits during empleyment and post-
employment benetits in September 2020 and the same has received Presidential Assent. The Cades have been published in the Gazetie of Indin. However, the date on
which the Codes will come into effect has not yet been notificd. The Company will give appropriate fimpact i its financial statements in the peniod in which the Code
becomes elfective and the related rules are published.
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41 Financial ratios

For the year ended

For the year ended

Explanation if variance

i dol i )
s Methodology 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 i exceeds 25%
a) Cusrent ratio Cur{'t{nt assets/  Currgnt 0.49 104 53% Duc to ’ncrcaqc.m
liabilities borrowings during the year
X r 1 q ' Hgeomaa
b) Debr-equity rutic Tut‘.al debt!  Sharcholder's 17.55 112 1225%, Dug to increase in
cquity burrowings during the year
. . Earnings available for debi Due to increase in carnings
cj Debt service coverage ratio . ) 0.36 .34 -205% " i
° g service! Debt service .34) g availuble lor debt service
; Nel  proiit  after  taxes’
Return on equit; ) -29.59% ~33RA% -11% B
d) on equity Averago shurcholder's equity 29,59 §% 11% Not Applicable
Cost of zoads sold Average Due to increase n purchases
¢} Invenlory turnoyer ratio inv.:en[un; ) & 6.25 4.87 2B and consumption during the
period
Revenue from operations
f) Trade receivables turnover ratio Average accounis 5.08 615 -17% Nat Applicable
receivables
g) Trade payables tumover satio Total  purchases/ Average 145 112 w0, e to increase in purchases
rrade payables during the period
hy Net capital rumover ratio Net sales’ Working caputal 13.09) 16121 103 ”““"'; e eRgpaTings
capika
i) Net profit ratic Net profit! Net sales 10,182 -19.99% 499 Rucioreductioninlogsesiin
the current yeur
i) Return on capital employed Eamings before interest and a65% 2.40% 1270, Duc to lmcrcasc I earnmgs
: before interest and taxes

k) Return on investment

Notes!

taxes, Coapital empleyed
Dividend income, net gain
on sale of investments and
net fair value gam over
average investments

Nol Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Total debt - Borrowings + Lease liabilities - Cash & cash equivalents - Other bank balances
Earmings available for debr service = Net profit before taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation and amortisations - Other incame + Interest -+ Other
adfustrents (such as loss on sale of property, plant and eguipment)

Finance cost + Principal repayments + Leuse payments

Net prefit - Net profit after tax

Capial employed = Tangible net westh + Total debt

Eaimings before interest and taxes = Net profit before taxes - Other incorme + Finance cost + Other adjustments (such as [oss an sale of property, plant and eguipiment}

Debr serviee

CHARTERED
ACGOUNTANTS
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42 Additigna) disclasurcs
) The Cempany ducs not have any Berard property, where any procecding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property during and
as ar 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 (‘the reporting periods').

b) The Company has not revalued any of'its property. plant and cquipment, intangible asscts and right o use assets during the reporling periods.

¢) The Company has not readed  invested in Crypto currency during the reporting periods
d) The Company does not have any charges er sattsfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrur of Companies bavend the statutory perind as at the reporling petiods.
¢} The Company has not advanced or foaned or mvested funds during the reporting periods to any other personfs) or catityfies), including foreign entitics (intermediaries)
with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(i Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ar on behalf of the company (Sliimate Bencficiaries) ar
{ii) provide any puaraniee, security or the like 1o or on behali of'the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

f) The Company has not received any fund during the reporting periods from any persun(s) ot entity(ies), including foveign entities (Funding Party) with she understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(i} directly or indircctly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in Any manner whatsoever by or on behalfof the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(1) provide any guarantee, sceurity or the like on hehalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

#) The Company has no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surenderad or disclosed as meomme dunng the reporting periods in the
tax assessmenls under the Income Fax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961),

h) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the mature of loans to prometers, directors, KMPs or related parmics tas defined under Compantes Agt, 2013)
except as diselosed in note (i) below, cither severally or jointly with any other person that are:
{i) repayable on demandg; ar
{ii} without specitying any terms or period of repayment.

i} The Company has granied loans to below mentioned related party {refer Note 36) for business purpose which is repavable on demand at rate of interest 9.15% (31 March
2024 - R.15%)
(i) Hirdustan Pharma Distethulors Private Limited [(100%:) ; INR 265.37 lakls {31 March 2024 : INR 946.73 lakhs)

1) The Company is not declared as wilful defautter by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof or other lender in
aveordance with the guidelines on willul defauliers issued by the Reserve Bank of India,

k} The Company has complied with the number of layers for its holding in downstream companies preseribed under elause (87) of Scction 2 of the Companics Act, 2(H3 read
with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

1} As per the requirement of the wle 3¢1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company uses only such accounting software for maintaining its bosks of account
that have a feature of recording audit trail of cach and every transaction creating an ¢gil log of cach change made in the buuks of account. This featire of recording the
audit iratl has operated throughout the year and was net tampered with during the year,

Additionally audit irail has been preserved by the Company as per the stalutory requiremnents [or record retention,

for und on behalt of the Bourd of Director
S7i Sainatha Multispeciality Hospital

Salam Ameerali Sunil Kumar M R
hrector Director

DIN: 03091822 DIN: 09045670
Koghi Bengalury

Date: 13 May 2025 Date: 13 May 2025




